EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees fakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,489.70 3,642.71
Capital work-in-progress 3 4131 =
investment property 4 2,865.25 2,961.73
Intangible assets 5
Investments 6 2,500.00 2,500.00
Financial assets
Other financial assets 8 243.35 232.69
lineutiie Lea assels {icd) 9 - -
Other non-current assets 11 168.36 2227
Daterrad tay assere (ner) I 138.58 114 40
Total nan current assets Y,44b.55 9,471.00
Current assets
Hiventn e 12 6911 57.60
Financial assets
Investments 6 0.82
Loans 7 6,749.77 5,199.77
Trade receivables 13 234.11 408.01
Cash and cash equivalents 14 483.92 781.63
Other bank balances 141 12273 23063
Other financial assets 8 4,613.32 4,629.80
Other current assets 11 128.53 162.25
Total current assets 12,401.79 11,470.51
Total assets 21,848.34 20,944.31
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,020.40 1,020.40
Other equity 16 11,704.32 10,162.68
Total equity 12,724.72 11,183.08
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 5,466.48 6,919.63
Other financial liabilities 18 63.92 152.66
Deferred revenue 21 10.21 19.09
Provisions 22 4042 33.59
Total Non-current liabilities 5,581.03 7,124.97
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 2653.14 16498.62
Trade payables
_ Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 17.70 21.38
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 19 32013 527.87
enterprises
Other financial liabilities 18 350.72 225.97
Other current liabilities 20 72.61 157.50
Deferred revenue 21 8.88 13.16
Provisions 22 14.77 18.34
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 104.64 22.42
Total Current liabilities 3,542.59 2,636.26
Total liabilities 9,123.62 9,761.23
Total equity and liabilities 21,848.34 20,944.31
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
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EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 25 5,996.05 5,664.18
Other income 26 798.63 789.15
Total income (1) 6,794.68 6,453.33
Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed 27 403.09 409.64
Employee benefits expense 28 830.73 735.26
Finance costs 30 792.26 77113
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 379.64 39541
Other expenses 29 2,386.36 2,127.48
Total expenses (II) 4,792.08 4,438.92
Profit before tax (I - 1) 2,002.60 2,014.41
Tax expenses:
Current tax 24 495,38 488.10
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 24 {26.76) 72.47
Total tax expenses 468.62 560.57
Profit for the year 1,533.98 1,453.84
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods :
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 10.23 (11.48)
Deferred tax effect {2.57) 2.89
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to profit 7.66 {8.59})
or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,541.64 1,445.25
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share Rs, 10 each
(March 31, 2023: Rs. 10 each})]
Basic and diluted (Amount in Rupees) 32 15.03 14.25
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
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EON-Hinjewadl Infrastructure Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,002.60 2,014.41
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 380.74 395 96
Profit on sale of investment (6.02) (1.21)
Provision for doubtful receivables and advances 89.60 17.62
Provision or credit balance written back (40.32) (4 81)
Profit on gale of fixed assets . {2u.22)
INutest eipenses 19U 46 164 44
Interese licorie (613.73) {575.60)
Operating profit hefoeasocking o vpital changnee 2,601,193 2,703.10
Movements in working capltal :

{Incrcasc)in othet financial assets {664} (7.25)
{Increase) in inventories (11.81) {19.97)
{Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 84.30 {273.19)
Decrease in other assets 27.80 78.80
Increase /{decrease} in other financial liabilities 606 {9.99)
Increaac in provisions 13149 8.43
Increase/{decrease) in trade payables (171.10) {327.08)
Increase/{decrease) in deferred revenue {13.16) 7.68
Increase/{decrease) in other liabilities (84.89) 28.04
Cash generated from operations 2,447.38 2,074.57
Income taxes paid {net of refunds) {413.15) {76.75)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 2,034.23 1,997.82
B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and investment properties (312 73) (156.97)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 27.20
Proceeds on redemption / sale of investment in units of mutual funds 587.65 260.40
Purchase of investment in units of mutual funds {580.81) {190.00)
(Increase)/decrease in loans {1,550.00} 181.23
Investment in fixed deposits (218.64) {0.44)
Movement in fixed deposits having remaining maturity of more than 3 months 107.90 (158.43)
Interest received 844.83 87.33
Net cash flow generated (used) in investing activities (B) {1,121.80) 50.32
C. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 1,200.00 470.00
Repayments of borrowings (1,649.63) {1,363.01)
Interest paid {760.51) (761.40)
Net cash flow used in financing activities {'C) {1,210.14) {1,654.41)
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + 8 + C) (297.71) 393.72
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 781,63 38791
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 483.92 781.63

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2022

Cash on hand 223 230
Balances with banks:
- on current accounts 481.69 779,33
— Deposits -
Total cash and cash equivalents {note 14} 483.92 781.63

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date
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EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up No. of shares [in lakhs) Amount
As at April 1, 2022 102.04 1,020.40
As at March 31, 2023 102.04 1,020.40
As at March 31, 2024 102,04 1,020.40

B. Other equity

Attributable to the equity holders

Securities premium Retained earnings Total
Balance as at April 01, 2022 6,471.98 2,245.45 8,717.43
Profit for the year 1,453.84 1,453.84
Other comprehencive Loss -8.59 -8.5Y
Total comprehensive income - 1,445.25 1,445.25
Balance as at March 31, 2023 6,471.98 3,690.70 10,162.68
Profit for the year - 1,533.98 1,533.98
Other comprehensive income - 7.66 | 7.66
Total compreliensive income - 1,541.64 1,541.64
Balance as at March 31, 2024 6,471.98 5,232.34 ! 11,704.32
The accumpanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date i
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EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited (“the Company”) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of hotel operations and real estate

development and sale.
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issue in accordance with a

resolution of the Board of Directors on August 22, 2024.
2. Summary of material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule Ill}, as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value or revalued amount at the end of each reporting period, as explained under accounting policy 2.3.

The financials statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs('00,000) except when otherwise

indicated.
The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

2.2 Current versus non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified as a current asset when it is either:

- Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

A liability is classified as a current liability when either:

- Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) are classified as non-current assets / (liabilities).

The Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalent. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




EON-Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.3 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as non-current and current investments, at fair value, at each balance sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageaus market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Campany. The fair value nf an asset ar a liahility is ineasured using the assumptions that market
participnnta would uac whan pricing the assel v liabilily, assunidig Uial midrkel pardclpdare aet i thelr cconomic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non financial assat tahes intu accuunl a imarkel partivipeant's ability Lo penerdle economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant thal would use the asset in its highest
and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable

inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial information are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial information at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value.
- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
- Financial instruments {including those carried at amortized cost)
- Investment properties Refer - Note 2.8

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such unquoted
financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as non-current assets held for sale.

External valuation experts are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuation
experts is decided upon annually by the management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Mntas tn financial statemente for tha yoar andod March 21, 2014

2.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardiess when the payment is received on transfer of control of the goods or services to the customer
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

(i) Hotel Operations

Rooms, Food, Beverage and other allied hotel services including banquet services:

Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room revenue,
food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and
banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

In relation to other allied hotel services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered.

(ii) Rendering of services

Rental income from investment property:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not
economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Maintenance and service charge

Maintenance anr service chargaes arising from operating loases aro recognised as and when the services are rendered. The
Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the
Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue arising from operating lease is recognized as and when the services are rendered and are shown net of
expenses i.e. electricity expenses.

(iii} Sale of construction material and interior fit-outs

Revenue from sale of construction materials and interior fit-outs is recognized when control of the goods have been transferred
to the customer.

The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits
flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

(iv) Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income
in the statement of profit and loss.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Contract balances

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by

transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset
is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
Areceivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is

required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policy no. 2.16 Financial instruments — Financial
assets at amortised cost

Lontract ltabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an

amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company renders services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Company performs under the contract.

2.5 Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’), which is its functional currency.
2.5.1 Transactions and balances

Initial recognition: Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

2.5.2 Translation and exchange differences

Monetary items: Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at their respective functional
currency exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items: Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of initial recognition. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive income {‘OCI’) or profit or
loss are also recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

2.6 Taxes
2.6.1 Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities; on the basis of the taxable profits computed for the current accounting period in accordance with Income Tax Act,
1961. The tax rates used to compute the amount is the effective tax rate applicable to the Company for the period.

Current income tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognised in other
comprehensive income or in equity, respectively, and not in the Profit or Loss. The Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.6.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabililies and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
Lusiness conblnallun and, du e ting ul the tdisdetion, a11ects heither the accounting protit nor taxable protit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary ditterences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ulilised,
except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCi or directly in equity.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use and borrowing costs, if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals; the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

CWIP comprises of cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for intended use as at balance sheet date.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at, based on the management’s estimated usefu!
lives. The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated
over the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on is property, plant
and equipment.

Asset description Useful lives Useful lives Useful life as per
estimated by the  estimated by the Schedule Il (years)
Management  Management (years) -
(years) - Hotel IT Park
Building 30 Note 2.8 60
Plant and machinery 13 20 15
Electrical installations 13 20 10
Furniture and fixtures 10 15 08-10
Office equipment 13 20 5
Computers 6 6 6
Vehicles 10 10 10

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the assets over
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The management undertakes a review of the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each reporting period and adjustments are made whenever necessary.

2.8 Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for qualifying assets (long-term construction projects) if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in Statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property on written down value basis over 60 years from the date
of original purchase.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment property is derecognised either when it has been disposed of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the period of derecognition.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company amortized intangible assets over their estimated useful life i.e. over its license period i.e. 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an infanrihle asset are measired as the diffaranca hatoan tha nat dicpucal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecugnised.
2.10 Leases

The Company assesses at confract inceptinn whether a contract ig, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys the vight
Lu cuntiol Lthe use ul an ldentlfled asset for a period of time 1n exchange tar cansideratinn

2.10.1 Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in

which they are earned.

Lease income from operating leases (Lessor accounting): Ind AS 17 did not mandate straight-lining of lease escalation, if they are
in line with the expected general inflation compensating the lessor for expected inflationary cost, No relief under Ind AS 116 like
ind AS 17 from straight lining of lease rentals, so a lessor is required to recognize lease payments from operating leases as
income on either a straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Accordingly, the company has followed Ind AS 116.

2.11 Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.12 Inventories

Inventory of food, beverages and tobacco are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost is determined on a
weighted average basis. Cost include cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other than refundabie), inward freight, and
other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’'s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining the fair value
less costs to disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for
each of the Company’s cash generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement nf profit and Inss net of any reimhursement

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

2.15 Retirement and other employee benetits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is

determined using the projected unit credit method as per payment of gratuity act, 1972.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OC in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- the date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, The Company recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income
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Provision for compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The
Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company recognises the entire changes in the obligation, including
remeasurements in the statement of profit and loss for the year. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in
the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

2.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

2.16.1 Financial assets

Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss {‘FVTPL’).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not classified as fair value through profit
or loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction cost of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit or loss. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognised using trade date or settlement date

accounting.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

a) At amortised cost
b} At fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’)

(a) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost
Afinancial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR") method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense/ {income) in the statement
of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally
applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Company.

o
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(b)  Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

A Financial asset shall be measured at FVTPL, unless it is measured at amortised cost . The Company classifies all equity or
puttable financial instruments held for trading as measured al FVTPL. Such instruments are measured at fair value at initial
recognitton ivowell as at rach reporting date The fair value changes are recognised in e slalensent ul prolil and luss ey mutual
fund. Further, the Company may make an irrevocable election to designate a financial asset as FVTPL, at initial recognition, to
reduce or eliminate a measurement or recognilivn i onsistem y

Equity investments
Investment in equity shares of associates have been measured at cost less impairment allowance as per Ind AS 27.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Company’s Balance Sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or the Company has
transterred Its rights to receive cash tlows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash tlows in tull
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss {‘ECL’) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until
the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments based on shared credit
risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis.

The impairment loss/ (gain) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for impairment loss/ {gain) on financial
assets measured at FVOCI, which shall be recognised in the OCI.

2.16.2 Financial liabilities
Classification
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through profit

or loss {‘FVTPL’).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of, in the case of financial liabilities not classified as fair value through
profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition, if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in
OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing borrowings as financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost. After initial recognition, these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EfR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

2.16.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the

counterparty.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company’s cash management.

2.18 Cash dividend distribution to equity holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distribution to its equity shareholders in form of dividend, when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the Company’s discretion. As per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. The Company accordingly
recognises dividend after it is approved in the shareholders’ meeting. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.
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2.19 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of a company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions about resource allocation and assess its performance and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Company has identified the Board of Directors of the Company as its CODM.

2.20 Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company

A contingent liability can arise for obligations that are possible, but it is yet to be confirmed whether there is present obligation
that could lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

The Company also discloses contingent liability when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be

made.

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but only makes disclosures for the same in the financial information.

2.21 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

2.22 Change in Accounting Policy
The company has re-evaluated the need to disclose EBITDA and consequently removed the disclosure of EBITDA on the face of

the statement of profit and loss during the year ended March 31, 2024.

Note 2A: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial information requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial information:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties portfolio. The Company has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the lease contracts as operating leases.
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Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities within the next financial year,
arc described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
rhanges o cirnenstant es arising heyond the Company's cantrol Such changes are raflocted in tho accumptions whan thoy
occur.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising beyond the Company’s control. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they

Qeaur,

Note 2B: Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

Amendments to Standards effective 1 April 2023

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31
March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023 which have been applied by the Company for
the reporting period commencing from April 1,2023.

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement
for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies
and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition
or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

ind AS 12 — Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning

obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12
{recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a
change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Note 4 - Investment property as at March 31, 2024

Freehold land Building Total
Gross book value
Opening 843.34 2,926.15 3,769.49
Additions - 12.09 12.09
Disposals - - -
Closing balance 843.34 2,938.24 3,781.58
Accumulated Depreciation
QOpening - R807.76 R07.76
Charge for the year - 108.57 108.57
Disposals - . -
Closing balance - 916.33 916.33
Net book value 843.34 2,021.91 2,865.25
Investment property as at March 31, 2023

Freehold land Building Total
Gross book value
Opening 843.34 2,926.15 3,769.49
Additions - - %
Disposals - - -
Closing balance 843.34 2,926.15 3,769.49
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening - 682.21 682.21
Charge for the year - 125.55 125.55
Disposals - - -
Closing balance - 807.76 807.76
Net book value 843.34 2,118.39 2,961.73
Notes

1. The Company’s investment property consist of commercial leasing properties in India. The title deeds of these investment property is held in the name of the
Company.

2, The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment
properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.
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Information regarding income and cxpenditure of investment property

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March

2024 a1, 2023
Rental incame derived fram investment praperty 1,062.01 1.167.50
Uirgct operating expenses {including repans and maintenance) generating rental inrome 271 123.57
Nireet npeeating e nos v (inelading repains aod maintunance) Wat did nue genergee rental
income
Profit arising from investment property before depreciation 1,029.83 1,043.93
and indirect expenses
Less : Depreciation 108.57 125.55
Profit arising from investment property before indirect expenses 921.26 918.38
Reconciliation of fair value of the Investment property are as under
Land Building Total

Balance as at April 1, 2022 7,323.00 5,142.00 12,465.00
Fair value movement for the year 339.00 89.00 428 .00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 7,662.00 5,231.00 12,893.00
Fair value movement for the year 204.00 68.00 272.00
Balance as at March 31, 2024 7,866.00 5,299.00 13,165.00
Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to investment property:

Valuation Significant Range (weighted average)

techniques unobservable inputs

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Land

Building

Market Method
{Replacement cost)
Market Method
(Replacement cost)

Rate adopted per sft.

Rate adopted per sft.

Rs. 5,800

Rs. 2,650-3,300

Rs. 5,650

Rs. 2,600-3,250

Description of valuation method

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Siddharth S. Thite & Associates, an accredited independent and Government certified valuer vide report
dated June 14, 2024 which is in compliance with rule 2 of the Companies (Registered valuers and valuation) Rules, 2017. The valuation was conducted through a
market rate approach. Under this approach the market value has been obtained by considering the sale consideration of the similar properties. Under this
method average rate has been obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting various positive and negative factors associated with
the property under valuation. For constructed properties depreciation market rate is taken for valuation.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 5 - Intangible assets

As at March 31, 2024

Computer software

Total

Gross book value
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance

Charge during the year
Disposals

Closing balance

Net book value

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

As at March 31, 2023

Computer software

Total

Gross book value
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance

Charge during the year
Disposals

Closing balance

Net book value

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50

26.50
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Note 6 - Investments

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non-Current Non-Current Current Current
Investments at cost
Investment in associate
Investment in equity instruments {unquoted)
2,20,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,20,00,000) equity shares of Rs, 2,500.00 2,500 00 =
11.36 each in Calista Properties Private Limited, Refer note 53
Investments at falr value through profit and loss
Investmenty In mutual fund
Investment in Mutual funds . 081
Total investments 2,500.00 2,500.00} 0.82
Aggregated book value of unquoted investments 2,500 00 2,500 00
0.82

Aggregated markel value of quoted investments

Note 7 - Loans

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non-Current Non-Current Current Current
At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Inter-corporate deposit repayable on demand
- to related parties - - 6,749.77 5,199.77
- to others -]
Total Loans - 6,749.77 5,199.77
Name of the Related parties Rate of interest Due date Secured/ Unsecured March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A22 Online Services Private Limited 9.90%|On demand Unsecured 1.700.00 -
Pune Express Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd 10.00%|On demand Unsecured 5,049 77| 5,199.77
6,749.77 5,199.77

a. Loans have been utilised by these parties for general corporate purposes
c. There are no loans due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member, other than as disclosed above

As at March 31, 2024

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of loans

Promoter
Directors
KMPs

Related Parties

6.749.77

100%

As at March 31, 2023

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of loans

Promoter
Directors
KMPs

Related Parties

5,199.77

100.00%




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 8 - Other financial assets

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current Non-current Current Current
At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposit 113,59 106.89 2.60 2.66
Unsecured, considered good
Long term deposit with bank with original maturity more than 12
months but
- remaining maturity period less than 12 months - - 23471 13.66|
- remaining maturity period more than 12 months (refer below 9975 102.16 - -
note)
213.34 209.05 237.31 16.32
Others
At amortised cost
- interest on security deposit - - 6.61 3.90
- interest on Fixed deposit 30.01 2364 2,58 1.58
-interest on inter corporate deposit 4,366.82 4,608.00
30.01 21.04 4,376.01 4,613.48
Total other financial assets 243,35 232.69) 4,613.32 4.629.80J

Note - Includes deposit amounting to Rs. 83,00 fakh= kept as DSRA with the bank {March 31, 2023: Rs, 83.00 lakhs given

Note 9 - Income tax assets (net}

as security against guarantee issued by bank)

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non-current

Non-current

Current

Current

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation)
Total income tax assets {net})

Note 10 - Deferred tax assets (net)

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets {refer note 24)
Deferred tax (net)
Net deferred tax assets to be carried to balance sheet

138.58] 114 40
138.58] 114.40
138.58] 114.40

Note 11 - Other assets

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current Non-current Current Current
Unbillled revenus 26,61 17.98 28.72 31.64
Capital advances
Unsecured, consldered good 140.17 - - 4
166.78 17.98 28.72 31.64
Advances
Unsecured, considered good - 68.28 105.33
Credit impaired - - 85.00 24.24
- 153.28 129.57
Less: Impairment allowance - - 85.00 24.24
- 68.28 105.33
Other advances
Prepaid expenses 1.58 4.29 31.21 24.34
Balances with government authorities - - 0.13 0.12
Advances/Loan given to employees - - 0.19 0.82
1.58 4.29 31.53 25.28
Total other assets 168.36 22.27 128.53 162.25'




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 12 - Inventories

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Food, beverages and other supplies
Total inventories

69.41

5760

69.41

57.60

Inventories valued at lower of cost and NRV

Note 13 - Trade receivables

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 234.11 408.01
Credit impaired 13.48 102.78
247 59 510.79
Less : Allowance for credit impaired 13.48 102.78
Total Trade receivables 234.11 408.01
For transactions with other related parties, refer note no 36
Trade receivable ageing as at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1year-2year| 2year-3| Morethan Total
year 3 years|
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 212.69 18.24 3.18 - 234.11
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in - . .
credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired e 204 3.46 0.30 7.68 13 48
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit - - -
risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - -
Total - 212.69 20.28 6.64 0.30 7.68 247.59
Trade receivable ageing as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year lyear-2year| 2year-3| Morethan Total
year| 3 years

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - 396.94 8.95 0.06 2.06 . 408.01
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in - -
credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired - 394 9.92 1.72 - 87.20 102.78
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit - - - -
risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - . s - =
Total = 400.88 18.87 1.78 2.06 87.20 510.79




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs untess otherwise stated)

Note 14 - Cash and cash equivalent

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts

Cash on hand

481.69 779.33
2.23 230
483.92 781.63

Note 14.1 Other banl balances

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less

than 12 manths {refer note helow)

12273

17171 7

23063

hELE ]

Inchudes depuall ainounbiig 10 Ns: TT.A3 lahhis (Maichi 31, 2033 uf s Td 4y Faklis) glven as seeut

For the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash squivilents camprise the following:

1Ly diditist BUd) diflee SUeY by bdtik

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Balances with banks:

— On current accounts 481,69 779.33
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
-Cash on hand 2.23 2.30]
Total cash and cash equivalents 483.92 781.63
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

April 1, 2023 Cash flows| Changes in fair value March 31, 2024
Non- current and current borrowings 8,569.25 (449.63) 8,119.62
Total liabilities from financing activities 8,569.25 {449.63) 8,119.62

April 1, 2022 Cash flows | Changes in fair value March 31, 2023
Non- current and current borrowings 9,462.26 {893.01) - 8,569.25
Total liabilities from financing activities 9,462.26 (893.01) - 8,569.25
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables - 23411 408.01
Cash and bank balances - - 48392 781.63
Other bank balances - - 122.73 230.63
Other financial assets 243,35 232.69 4,366.82 4,608.00
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 243.35 232.69| 5,207.58 6,028.27




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Moted to finoudiol Matumienls for the yew codod Maidh 31, 1034
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 15 - Equity share capital

Authorised shares
1,10,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,10,00,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
1,02,04,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,02,04,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,100.00 1,100.00
1,020.40 1,020.40
1,020.40 1,020.40

{a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
There is no movement in the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

(b} Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts

The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(c) shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Qut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited, the ultimate holding company © 645.40 645 40
64,54,000 {March 31, 2023: 64,54,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
{d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Frpity shares nf s 10 aach fully peid
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25% 64,54,000 63.25%
Mr. Atuli. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% 12,50,000 12.25%
Mr. Sagar [, Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% 12,50,000 12.25%

{e) Shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2024

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change during the

S.No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares St
1 Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25%
2 Mr. Atul I, Chordia 12,50,000 12.25%
3 Mr, Sagar |, Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% =
4 Ms. Meena Chordia 4,16,666 4.08% -
5 Ms. Yashika Shah 4,16,667 4.08% -
6 Mr. Yash Chordia 4,16,667 4.08% -
Total 1,02,04,000 100%

As at March 31, 2023

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change during the

S.No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares year
1 Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25%
2 Mr. Atul | Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% =
3 Mr. Sagar . Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% =
4 Ms. Meena Chordia 4,16,666 4.08% =
5 Ms. Yashika Shah 4,16,667 4.08% =
6 Mr. Yash Chordia 4,16,667 4.08% -
Total 1,02,04,000 100% -

The shareholding information has been extracted from the records of the Company including register of shareholders / members and is based on the legal ownership of shares




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 - Other equity

Securities premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Change during the year

Closing balance

Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Total other equity

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6,471.98 6,471.98
6,471.98 6,471.98
3,690.70 2,245.45
1,533.98 1,453.84

7.66 (8.59)
5,232.34 3,690.70
11,704.32 10,162.68| -

Nature and purpose of reserves
Securities premium reserves

The Company had issued equity shares at premium in prior years, and as a result securities premium was created. The
reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers from other reserves,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on
defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.




EDN-Hinjzwndi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for tha year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are In Rupees |akhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 - Borrowings

Winreh 51 2034]  March 31, 203)) Marel 31, 2004 Mareh 41, 2071
Non-eurrent portion| Hom-turennt partinn|  Current Current
Tarm loans
Indian rupee loan 3 {secured) 1,143 14 1,71052 567 41
Indian rupee loan 4 {secured) 43737 3 52091} &AS 73

5, 466,40 1l Lia%3.14

The above amount Includes

Secured borrowings SRLEE 6,919 67 1,453 1) 1360 62
UHKSELULSY bBHAWIRES . .

Total Borrowings S Ah. 44 &.219.61] 1,451.14] 1,068,03]
Notes:

Indfan Rupee Loan 3 & 4
The term loans are secured by equitable martgage an the praperty lorated - all piece & parcel of the land {plot A & B) bearing € No 10 {part) & 5 No 20/1 to 20/6/1, 20/1 10 20/9 {parl), Lulally
admeasuring 23,266 sq. mtr along with all present structure known as "Panchshil Techpark and "Courtyard Marriott  and anv future construction tagether with available or futire availahta FSI/TIR tharann
at village Hinjewadi, Hinjewadi Road, within the limits of PCMC. Taluka Haveli Distrir1-Pune The lnan is further sacurer by stack and future receivalilee from Courtyard Marriott and Paachahil Techuadh The
J6art 15 turtner hypothecated and esciuw Ly any jesenl amb ulone remy ne any nihar rarelvahlet balonging to the Lompanyincames from the aperationd a8 tle hutel amd fomevoomen el st atnns 4
Hirtjewadi and Fanehshil | echpark; and personal guarantee of director Mr Atul Chordia

The [ndian Rupee loan 3 is repayable in 84 equal monthly mstallments starting from July 21, 2019 atong with interest rate of MCULR + 30bps with annual reset, the interest rate is 7 95 % to 9 35 % per annum
(March 31, 2023: 7 50 % to 9.00 %)

The indian Rupee loan 4 is repayable in 132 unequal monthly instaliments starting from July 21, 2018 along with interest rate of MCLR + 80 bps with annual reset, the interest rate is & 65 % to 8 85 % per
(Ml 207700029041 23004

Mota 1/ Borrowings fuun and)

Mareh 31, 7024 Mareh 41, 2033
Deposits {unsecured)
Inter corparate deposit repayable on demand (Refer not below) 1,200 0| 283 Ot
7 219,09
Note:
Narne af thi Beloted porties Hatr ol ininrest Cisp date Secured) Ununcurod | Mareh 39, 2024 Brarch 35, 3029 |
Batewad] Trchparh Private Limitad On demand Ustimeured .
Premaagar infra Beatty Peivat Limited an demand Lnuegureid . 1311 00
|Eatila Entermrines Prvate Limitea 2 500 41 Bermiand Unsgured 1700 -
[ 4,000 283,00
4 Firlei Note 51 far dntails regarding utilisation of loans during the yeal
ot 18« Cithur fnaticlal Habilities
Mareh 23, 7024 Muarth 51, 2024] Tarchi 31, 203 Parch 33, 2023
Nan-Turrent nun.t.nl___n.ﬂ% Currnnt] nt
Seruriy depoans 63 97 15266 250 42 148 9(
Empluyes related liabilitio . 3148 3820
fetention maney 2 36} 236
Interest sccrued - - 66 46 3653
Tutsl finsncinl Nabilitles 6197 152,66 350.72 225.97)
Note 19 - Trade payables
March 33, 7034 Pnrch 93, 2023
Total outstanding dues of mticro rieryersas il Wl enterprises 1270 21 31
lintir note 37}
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than mitro enterprises 32013 527 87
il sisill entaeprises
Total tragn payables 337.83; 541

Refer note 36 for details of trade payables to related parties

Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2024

fan $allowenp periads fram dus date of payment
Lintsillnd] Not die] teasthan 1 ) 2.3 Mare thas 3 yesrs Total|
] yeary yaars|
Al 1794 . - FERTY
ithory 151 58 16704 0.3 EELAE
DI&EIIH‘ﬂ Jues = MSME - = - - R - =
Disputed dues - Others = :
Tatal 15158 . 16594 [0 - - 3374 |
Trade payable ageing as st March 31, 2023
] Cutstariding far folfaving perlods feom due date of papment
Unkitled] Not dus Lmisthan 1| 1.2 2.3 More thin = years Total
year| years) yrars|
MSME | : 2138 -

Orhere £ 471 24 3 [F5 57
Bispsutied duss — MEME r = .

Disputed durs « Othirre =

. - 28181 3.96 | o]

Note 20 - Other liablifties

Barch 41, 2073
Curfent]

Advance from customers {Contract liabilities) 8416
Dthers.
TDS and other statutory dues payable 20.64 1524
Value added tax and works contract tax payable 656 615
Goods and services fax payable 715 4463

Ermployes rilared labilillss
atiar (lzilities




EQN-Hinjewadi Infragtructurs Private LUmited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AU atenyiis are i Wiagaes lnkha diless athecnilie itated)

Note 21 - Deferred revenue

1, 2023 March 31, 2074] Mtnres 31, 2033

Fabtreny, Current] _Currnnt)

Llelatred reveme 102 19 04, 88§ 13 ui
1049 [ T

Tetal delerred snuniiae

March AL, 2004, March 13, 2021

Opening Balance 3225 2457
Deferred during the year ! 806

to the statement of profit and loss 1118 n3g
Closing Balanre 149,09 1125

Note 22 - Provisions

taren 11, 3074 Mareh 3t 2023, Marth 31, 2024, March 31, 70
Feh Clrramt B crart e Larrent
Provislon far employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment 720 3 86) 6 6t 685
Provision for gratuity 3327 29 73| 814 11 69
Total pravisians i 40,42 33 54| 14.77] 1834

Note 23 - Current tax lisbilities (net)

March 11, 2024 Btarch 11, 7023
Proviclon Lor jneome ten [nnd of sdvinge epameta sssunting 1o 104 64 22 47|
Fi 285 46 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs 450 10 Lakhs)

Total current tan Habilitied fnet) PN 1242

Note 24 - intane Tas
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

Statement of profit and loss section

Deferred tax assets {net)

The Company offsets tax assets and liab
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax autharity

es if and only i it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the

March 31, 202 March 11, 20,
Cusrrmint Incoma tax
Lamient mcoms Tar charge 495 34| 488 104
Delerrad
fwlating to and reversal of temporary {26 76}| 72 47
Incamie tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 46867 560.57
0T saction
Di#foried tas refated to items recognised in OCI during in the year 187 {2 89|
267 [FEED
|
Toral taw expatisey 471,19 557,68
Reconelllation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indla’s domestic tax rate for the year ended
March 31, 30, haaredy 41, Jiidd)
Arentnting prodit balors fay 2,002 60 2,014 41
Computed tax expense
At India’s statutary income tax rate of 25 17% (March 31, 2023: 25 17%) 504 0t 506 99
Adprstmants for
Lfiect of income/ expenses taxed at different rate {59 00} 310
Cthess 2361 50 48
A1 tha etieclive Income tax rate of 27.68% [March 31, 2023; 27.68%]
|ncarms tax sapeniy reporiad in the af profit and ke 4606 56057
Onferrad tan
Deferred tox raistes 1o the foflowing
Balance shuet of peatit and ks | Statwment of thanges in OCF
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2003 March 31, 2024 Blarh 31, !U_!_lj March 31, J024) March 31, 2029
Cifferences in depreciation in block of Property plant ani 101 86| 74 81 27.04 {45 20) E
equipment as per tax books and financial books
charged to the of prafit and Joss in the 18 62| 21 65 (3.03]] 377 2.5
cuirent year but allowed for lax purposes on payment basis
Untslled sirvenun {6 69|| (453 2.17) (4 05} .
Tax Losses y {23 91}
Prowvinian for doubtful debts 24,79 12 il 2.33) {0 18 C
et delerenid tax expense/(income) B - 24,18 3.5, 2.57) 1u_9]_|
|#en deferred vox sesets fflnbilities) 138,58 Ll-t.-t_u-]
Frllected in the balance shest as latlinws
PMarch 31, 2024]  Mwech 31, 2023
Deferred tax liability (6 69} {4 53)
Deferred tax assets 14527 118493
13050 114,40



EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 25 - Revenue from operations

Revenue from rental income
Income from incidental activities
Revenue from contract with customers
I. Services transferred over time
From hotel operations
Room income
Other hotel services including banquet income and membership fees

Il. Goods transferred at a point in time
From commercial leasing

From Sale of construction materials
Scrap sale

From hotel operations
Sale of food and beverages

Total revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from operations

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,062.04 1,167.50
7.77 8.49
3,006.49 2,603.10
284.17 198.77
3,290.66 2,801.87
1.49 4.29
1,634.09 1,682.03
1,635.58 1,686.32
4,926.24 4,488.19
5,996.05 5,664.18

Disaggregated Revenue Information

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Revenue recognised over a period of time
Revenue recognised at a point of time

3,290.66 2,801.87
1,635.58 1,686.32
4,926.24 4,488.19

Note 26 - Other income

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest income on

Bank deposits measured at amortised cost

On inter corporate deposit measured at amortised cost
On income tax refund

On others

Other non operating income
Profit on sale of Property plant and equipment
Profit on sale of investments

Other

Other rental income
Provision written back
Miscellaneous income

Total other income

24.92 12.83
581.88 537.31
- 21.13

6.93 4.33
613.73 575.60
= 20.72

6.02 1.21
6.02 21.93
138.56 112.45
40.32 4.81
i 74.36
178.88 191.62
798.63 789.15




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 27 - Cost of food and beverages consumed

Cost of food and beverages consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Total Cost of food and beverages consumed

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
57.60 37.63

414 90 479 A1

472.50 467.24

69.41 57.60

403.09 409.64

Nate 28 - Fmplayee henefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expenses (refer note 34}

Staff welfare expenses

Total Employee benefit expenses

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
666.52 591.20

46.30 40.75

10.14 12.35

107.77 90.96

830.73 735.26

Note 29 - Other expenses

Power, fuel and light
Rates and taxes
Insurance charges
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery

Buildings

Vehicle
Transport charges
Advertising and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fees
Linen, laundry and cleaning
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 29.01 below)
Other incidental activity expenses (net)
Asset management charges
Management fees
Royalty
Security expenses
Provision for doubtful receivable/advance
Debit balance written off
Exchange loss (net)
CSR expenses (refer note 40)
Donation
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
482.77 443.08
88.91 54.81
18.67 14.37
214.83 224.11
144.98 218.97
1.23 1.62
17.38 35.48
359.98 278.93
25.52 14.99
12.59 17.59
48.10 93.95
121.78 118.94
178.95 146.50
14.59 13.43
52.84 53.29
20.75 22.55
136.97 104.69
105.24 58.65
56.07 42.39
89.60 17.62
26.94

3.96 33.00
13.00 8.93
0.04 0.43
177.61 82.22
2,386.36 2,127.48




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless utherwise stated)

Note 29.01 Auditors' remuneration

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

As auditor:
- Audit fee
Reimbursement of expenses

13.76 13.39
0.83 0.04
14.59 13.43

Note 30- Depreciation and amortisation expense

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 4)

Less: depreciation on assets relating to other incidental activity
Total depreciation and amortisation expense

272.17 270.41
108.57 125.55

(1.10) (0.55)
379.64 395.41

Note 31 - Finance costs

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest expense on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

- on bank facilities 723.54 748.48
- oninter corporate deposil 51.15 9.22
- on ather financial instruments 12.77 8.68
- on others - 1.08
790.46 767.46
Other borrowing costs
Bank charges 1.80 3.67
1.80 3.67
Total finance cost 792.26 771.13
Note 32. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net profit after tax 1,533.98 1,453.84
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of basic and 102.04 102.04
diluted EPS (number in lakhs)
Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each 15.03 14.25

(Amount in Rupees)
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EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 35 - Commitments and con(ingen'cies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments: where the Company is the lessor

The Company has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolic consisting of commercial space along with interior fit-outs such as furniture and
fixture, air conditioners, etc. These leases have terms of between one and seven years. Some of the leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge
on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions, There are no restrictions imposed by the lease agreement. Rental income recognised by the Company

during the year is Rs. 1,662.04 lakhs {(March 31, 2023 : Rs. 1,167.50 lakhs). Future minimurm rentals receivable under non- cancellable operating leases are as below:

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are, as follows:*

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within one year 527.68 684.51
After one year but not more than five years 456.44 78873
Above 5 years . .
b. Capital and other commitments
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 33883
and not provided for
Total 338.83
¢, Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Liabilities disputed - appeals filed with respect to:
Income tax on account of disallowances / additions (Company appeals) 624.95 62495
Goods and Service tax on account of valuation / input tax credit 2.68 2.68

kit k4 hilhd

Note 36 - Related Party Disclosures
{i) Names of related parties and related party relationship
A Aclated poilics wliers coitiol eaists
Holding company Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited
Fellow subsidiary / Subsidary of Holding Company Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited

Mr. Atul Chordia

Mr. Sagar Chordia

Enterprise in which director is director or member or his relative is Ventive Hospitality Limited {formerly known as ICC
director or member in the Company, LLP or firm Realty {India) Private Limited)

Panchshi Corporate Park Private Limited

Estela Enterprises Private Limited

Panchshil Realty and Developers Private Limited
Panchshil Foundation

Pune Express Infrastructure Private Limited
Lifestyle Interior LLP

Balewadi Techpark Private Limited

A2Z Online Services Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated}

{ii)  Transactions during the year:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest gxpenses
Balewad) Techpark Brivate Limited 9.40 5.30
Premsagar Infra Realty #rivate Limited 546 3.88
Esteln Enterprizes Privati Limited 3830 .
Interest income
AZZ Unfine Services Private Limited 6551 899
Pune Express Infrastructure Private Limited 516.37 52832
1€ taken
Balewad Techpatk Private Limited - 350.00
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited . 12000
Estela Enterprises Private Limited 1,200.00
1CD refund
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 16%9.00 18100
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 120.00
ICD given
A2Z Online Services Pvt, Ltd, 1,700.00|
1CD refund received
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 94.00
Pune Express Infrastructure Private Limited 150.00 87.23
Services rendered
Panchshil infrastructure Holdings Private Limited - 141
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited - 0.09
Asset management charges
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 20.75 2255
Sale of room, food and beverages
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 4,62 =
Other income
Panchshil Realty and Developers Private Limited 60.02
Reimt of exp
Ventive Hospitality Limited (formerly known as ICC Realty (India) 9.38 8.44
Private Limited)
Lifestyle Interior LLP - 4,71
Panchshi Corporate Park Private Limited 2.58 -
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 2.40 -
Repair and maintenance expenses
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 3,41
Royalty fees expense
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 6,50
Corporate social responsibility expenses
Panchshil Foundation 13,00 8.93




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

{iii) Balance outstanding:

Particulars As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest receivable
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 5896 769.70
Pune Express Infrastructure Private Limited 4,307 86 3,843.13
Interest payable
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited - 477
Premsagar Infra Reaity Private Limited - 3.49
Estela Enterprises Private Limited 3537
ICD taken
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 169.00
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 12000
Fetala Fnterprisac Priviate limited 1,300,00
ICD given
Pine Fyvprese Infrastrirtire Private Fimited 501877 5,100.77
A2Z Qnline Services Private Himited 1A
ey elualiles
A7 Onlina Faniiene Arivnata Limited 0.00
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 0.09
Panchshil infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 009
Payables
A2Z Onllne Services Private Limited b.Ul 1.82
Ve_ntlve ‘Hc_:spltallty Limited (formerly known as ICC Realty {India) 1451 19.47
Private Limited)
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 2.46 0.10
Premsagar infra Realty Private Limited 7.02 -
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 0.94 -

Transactions with key management personnel
The Company has not entered into any transaction with key management personnels,

Note 37 - Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006
The amounts that needs to be disclosed pertaining to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

are disclosed below:

As at March 31, 2024, Rs. 17.70 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 21,38 lakhs) was outstanding to the vendors having their status as Micro or Small enterprises or its registration with the
appropriate authority under 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006'. And the interest payable to them as per section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs,
0.06 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.02 lakhs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1. Following are remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
{a) The principal amount

{b) The interest due thereon

2. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and -
Mediurn Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {27 of 2006}, along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

17.70 2138

3. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which has 0.06 0.02

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

4, The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year -

5. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 2.45 2.38

such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Al amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 38 - Fair values

Sct out below ts 8 comparlon, by cless, of the cariving amounits amd fai valie ol tie Corpany’s T ial instrameals as af barch 31, 2024

Amaortised Cost

Financial
assets/liabilities at fair
value through profit and
loss

Financial assets/liabilitios
at fair value through OCI

Total carrying value

Total fair value,

Financial assets

Loans 6.749.77 £,749 77 £,749 77
Trode ond ather reccivobles 23411 234,44 23411
Cash and cash equivalents 483.92 483,92 48392
Other bank balances 12273 12273 12273
Other financial assets 4,856.67 4,856 67 4,856.67
Total 12,447.20 - 12,447.20 12,447.20
Financial liabilities
HBorrowings 8,119.62 8,119.62 8,119.62
Trade and other payables 337.83 - 337.83 337.83
Other financial liabilities 414.64 - 414.64 414 64
|
[Yotal 8,872.09 | 8,872.09 8,872.09

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments as of Ma

rch 31, 2023

Amortised Cost

Financial
assets/liabilities at fair
value through profit and

Financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through OCI

Total carrying value

Total fair value

toss

Findntldal assus

Investments 0.82 082 nR2
Loans 5,199.77 - 5,199.77 5,199.77
Trade and other receivables 408.01 408.01 408.01
Cash and cash equivalents 781.63 781.63 781.63
Other bank balances 230.63 230.63 23063
Other financial assets 4,862.49 4,862.49 4,862 49
Total 11,482.53 0.82 - 11,483.35 11,483.35
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 8,569.25 8,569.25 8,569.25
Trade and other payables 549.25 - 549.25 549.25
Other financial liabilities 378.63 378.63 378.63
Total 9,497.13 = E 9,497.13 9,497.13

The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term

maturities of these instruments

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Investment in mutual funds

The fair value of investments in mutual funds is derived from the NAV of the respective units at the measurement date,

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value after initial recognition:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024:

Fair value ement using
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observable inputs | Significant unobservable
markets (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Investments in units of mutual funds March 31 2024 - -
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31 2024 13,165.00 13,165.00

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement

hierarchy for assets an

d liabilities as at March 31,

2023:

Date of valuation

Total

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in active
markets {Level 1)

Significant observable inputs
{Level 2)

Significant unobservable
inputs {Level 3}

Assets measured at fair value

Investrments in units of mutual funds
Assets for which fair value are disclosed

Investment property

March 31 2023

March 31 2023

0.82

12,893.00

0.82

There were no transfers between fevel 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs uniess otherwise stated}

Noule 39 - Finaudial tisk management vbjectives and pulides

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables and borrowings . The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets includes trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and investments

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed-to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant as at March 31, 2024 and March

31,2023

interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of

changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected the Company profit before tax is affected
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase / decrease in| Effect on profit before
basis points tax

March 31, 2024
INR +50 (41.48)
-50 41.48

March 31, 2023
INK +5U 144.02)
-50 44.02

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of chang

in tareign evchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is

due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Change in USD rate March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023,
usb +5% (0.12) (1.20)
-5% 0.12 120

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks, if any, and other financial instruments.




EON-Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables
The Company’s exposure ta credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer and the segment in which it works

In case of real estate business, customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. For the fixed lease
income, the billing is done in advance i.e at the beginning of the month and for variable lease rent and other maintenance charges, the credit period provided is 10 days. Thus there are no majo
trade receivable balances outstanding at the year end. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 13

In case of hospitality business, credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management
Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Qutstanding customer

receivables are regularly monitored

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a trade receivable or a group of trade receivables is impaired. The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses for all trade
receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction and which are due for more than six months, The expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit
losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The Company uses a practical

expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company's trade receivables using provision matrix relating to the hospitality business:

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Not due Within 120 days * More than 120 days * Total
ECL rate 0% 0% 100%

Estimated total gross carrying amount 212.69 34.90 247.59
ECL - Simplified approach (13.48) (13.48)
Net carrying amount - 212.69 21.42 234,11
As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Not due Within 120 days * More than 120 days * Total
ECL rate 0% 0% 100%

Estimated total gross carrying amount - 400.88 109.91 510.79
ECL - Simplified approach = {3.94) (98.84) (102.78)
Net carrying amount s 396.94 11.07 408.01

* Provision is made for receivables where recovery is considered doubtful irrespective of the due date. Where an amount is outstanding for more than 120 days the Company usually provides fc
the same unless there is clear visibility of recovery

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s management in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made with

banks in terms of fixed deposits and in mutual funds. Credit risk on cash deposits is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratin
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price, The Company's finance department is responsible for

liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. in addition, processes and polices related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's net
liquidity position on a monthly and quarterly basis through its senior management meeting and board meetings. They use rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The senior management ensures that the future cash flow needs are met through cash flow from the operating activities and short term borrowings from banks

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

On demand Within 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years More than S years To
As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings 1,200.00 342.75 1,097.48 5,256.30 223.09 8,119.6
Security deposit 250.42 - E 63.92 - 314.3
Trade Payables - 320.13 17.70 - - 337.8
Other financial liabilities 31.48 68.82 - - = 100.3
Total 1,481.90 731.70 1,115.18 5,320.22 223.09 8,872.0
As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings 289.00 288.01 1,076.63 5,106.63 1,808.98 8,569.2
Security deposit 148.90 . - 152.66 301.5
Trade Payables = - 492.81 56.44 - 549.2
Other financial liabilities 3.49 71.22 2.36 - v 77.0
Total 441.39 359.23 1,571.80 5,315.73 1,808.98 9,497.1




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors the capital using gearing ratio. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings net off cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loans and borrowings (note 17) 8,186.08 8,605.76
Less: cash and cash equivalents {note 14) 483.92 781.63
Net debt 7,702.16 7.824.13
Equity share capital (Note 15) 1,020 40 1,020.40
Other equity {Note 16) 11.704 32 1162 AR
Tirlal v apilal 13,73 T JYWTTRIT
Capital and net debt 20,426.80 19,007.21
Gearing ratio 38% 41%;

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Note 40 - CSR expenses
As pet Sectlon 135 of the Companles Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (L5R) committee has been tormed by the Company, The areas tor CSR activities are the activities mentioned in tt
Schodule Vi of tho Companloc act, 2043, Aamount spent during the year on octrvitica which arc apeaticd i Schedale Vil ol Uie Compunicd Act, 2013 wie as inentivied beluw .

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Amount required to be spent by the 13.00 8.93
Company during the year
{b) Amount approved by the Board to be 13.00 8.93
spent during the Year
(c) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year: 13.00 893
i)Construction/acquisition of any asset * -
ii)On purposes other than (i} above 13.00 893
{d) Details related to amount spent :
i)Contribution to Public Trust -
ii)Contribution to Charitable Trust 13.00 8.93
(e) Shortfall at the end of the year
(f) Total of previous years shortfall -
(g) Reason for shortfall NA NA
{h) nature of CSR activities, Educational & medical Educational & medical

expenses expenses

(i) details of related party transactions, e.g., Contribution to| Contribution to Panchshil
contribution to a trust controlled by the Panchshil Foundation Foundation charitable
company in relation to CSR expenditure as charitable trust trust
per relevant Accounting Standard,
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Note 41 - Benami Properties Note
The Campany rdn nnt have any Renami property where any peoceeding has heen initiated nr panding againet the Campany for hatding any Bantmi praparty

Note 42 - Relationship with Stuck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956

INUtE 43 - Hatios

Husmiutan Denutinutor As Maich 31,2024 As Warcli 31,3033 | 7h nuease/deusase b ratlu Remarks
{a) Lurrent ratio Lurrent Assets Current Liabilities 350 4,35 -20%|Not Applicable
{b) Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 064 0.77 -17%| Not Applicable
{c) Debt service coverage Carnings for debst Debt seivice - 126 123 2%| Not Applicable
ratio service = Net profit  |Interest & Lease
aftel taxes + Nun- Paytents + Pritipal
cash operating Repayments
- expenses
(d) Return on equity ratio Net Profits after Average 013 014 -8%| Not Applicable
taxes — Preference  |Shareholder’s Equity
Dividend
{e} Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold | Average Inventory 6.35 ' 8.60 -26%|Ratio decreased due TO increase in
Inventory in the Current year as
compared to previous year ac in
previous yesr company operations
started to get stabilized from covid 19
pandemic and due to reduction in cost
of food and beverages consumed as Sale
of food and beverages are reduced
{f) Trade receivables turnover Net credit sales = I A;eragTTr;de 25.61 13.88 84%|Ratio is increased due to decrease in
ratio Gross credit sales - |Receivable trade receivables as post covid

recoveries have been increased and
sales of the Company have aiso been

sales return

increased
(g) Trade payables turnover Net credit purchases | Average Trade 8.29 4,66 78%| Ratio is increased due to decrease in
ratio = Gross credit Payables trade payables and increase in operating
purchases - purchase expenditures of the Company,
return
{h) Net capital turnover ratio Net sales = Total Working capital = 0.68 0.64 6%|Not Applicable

sales - sales return  |Current assets —
Current liabilities

(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total 0.26 0.26 1%|Not Applicable
sales - sales return

{j) Return on capital employed Earnings before Capital Employed = 013 014 -5%| Not Applicable
interest and taxes Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability

(k) Return on investment Profit before tax Average Net worth 0.09 010 -14%| Not Applicable

Note 44 - The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
Note 45 - The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020, The Code
has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the

changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.
The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the

financial impact are published

Note 46 - The company is not required to file any quarterly returns or statements of current assets with banks or financial inst
Note 47 - The management confirms that the company is not declared as wilful defaulter {as defined by RBI Circular} by any Bank or Financial institution or other lender
Note 48 - The company has complied with the number of lavers prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Lavers) Rules, 2017,

Note 49 - The company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
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otherwise stated)

Note 50 - Undiclosed income

The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year {previous year) in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Note 51 - Loans and advances

{i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries} with the understanding that the Intermediary shall.
{a)  directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{ii} Following are the details of the funds received by the company and further advanced in the form of loan to the ultimate benificianes:

Date on which funds Amount of fund
are further advanced| further advanced in
Name of the funding party who|  Date of Funds :::‘;3:; vaf\futm:s llntform :f lolan l:y foer ofloda.n l?y such i fici
has provided the funds provided mt. in n er'me iaries ? ntermediaries to Ultimate Beneficiary
lakhs) other intermediaries | other Intermediaries
or Ultimate or Ultimate
Beneficiaries 8eneficiarles
Estela Enterprises Private Limitec 07-11-2023 800 00 07-11-2023 800,00 |A2Z Unline Services Private Limitad
Estela Enterprises Private Limited 22-11-2023 A00.00 22-11-2023 400,00 |AZZ Online Services Private Uimited

Complete details of the Funding party and Ultimate Beneficiary:

L Relationship with the
Name of the party Registered Address Identification Company
Number (PAN})
Tower 'E', Next to :;:;]z:;&:;owned of
Estela Enterprises Private Don Bosco School, influenced by
i Off airport road, AAECE7058F o :
Limited individuals having
Yerwada, Pune - X
hoosin conu_'ol or their
relatives
Tower '€, Next to E.nte.r!.)rises owned or
) : . Don Bosco Schoal, ?Ignlflcantly
A2Z Online Services Private Off airport road, AACCAS376) influenced by

individuals having
control or their
relatives

imited
fsimite Yerwada, Pune -

411006 MH

Note 52 - The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using privileged/ administrative access rights to the application {in
case of SAP 54 HANA and SAP 6.0} and/or the underlying database {in case of SAP $4 HANA, SAP 6.0 and Opera)

The Company has not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software(s) where the audit trail has been enabled

Further, the Company has used three software in the hotel business {Peoplesoft, Birchstreet and Infrasys} which are operated by third-party software service providers. In the absence of any
observations on audit trail feature in the respective of Service Organisation Controls {SOC) reports, the Company is unable to determine whether audit trail feature of these software was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in these software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with

Note 53 - Subsequent to the year end the company has sold its investment in Calista Properties Private Limited amounting to Rs, 2,500 lakhs at cost to Mr. Atul Chordia (promoter of the company) via
agreement dated July 22, 2024

Note 54- Subsequent to the year end, on August 8, 2024, 100% Equity shares of the Company have been acquired by Ventive Hospitality Private Limited Further on August 12, 2024, the Com-

pany has acquired 50.001% equity shares of Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

As per our report of even date
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